
                  AGENDA FOR  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

Council Chambers 
                                                                                                          401 E Third Street 

Kewanee, Illinois 61443 
Closed Session starting at 6:00 p.m. 

Open Meeting starting at 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, June 26, 2017 

 

Posted by 6:00 p.m., June 23, 2017 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Executive Session pursuant to Section 2(c)(1) of the Open Meetings Act to discuss personnel. 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes  
b. Payroll 
c. Staff Reports  
d. Request from the Henry County Humane Society – Kewanee Chapter to conduct tag days on July 14 and 

15 from 10 am to 4 pm. 

5. Presentation of Bills and Claims 

6. Citizen Participation 

7. Business: 

a. Acceptance of Board of Appeals minutes from its meeting on June 21, 2017. 
b. Consideration of an Ordinance granting a request for variance to Anthony Holdgrafer, 703 South 

Washington Street in regards to setbacks for garage placement. 
c. Acceptance of Plan Commission minutes from its meeting on June 22, 2017. 
d. Consideration of an Ordinance granting a rezoning request for land located at 212 North Burr Blvd. 

from B-1 to B-3 Business District. 
e. Consideration of an Ordinance granting a special use permit to Bill Cox, owner of Big River Gaming 

LLC d/b/a Lacey’s Place for property located at 202 North Tremont St for the sale of alcoholic liquor by 
the serving. 

f. Consideration of a Resolution to authorize the City Manager to execute a right-of-way agreement with 
Geneseo Communications. 

g. Consideration of an Ordinance granting a rezoning request for land located at 618 Tenney Street,  626 
Tenney Street, and 150 East South Street to B-3 Business District. 

h. Consideration of a Resolution establishing compensation for certain non-union, exempt, and 
management staff for fiscal year 2017/2018. 
 
 

8. Council Communications: 
 

9. Announcements:  
 

10. Adjournment 

 



 

 
 

 MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: June 23, 2017 

From: Gary Bradley, City Manager 

To: Mayor & Council 

RE:       Council Meeting of Monday, June 26, 2017 

 

CLOSED MEETING AT 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING AT 7:00 P.M. 

 

 

1. Lunch & Learn – The Chamber of Commerce Lunch & Learn session have ended.  The 

presentation on City incentives had the highest attendance with 24 people.  The 

presentation was well received and will hopefully result in additional improvements 

being made. 

 

2. Façade Program – An application was received and approved for façade improvements 

to 116 W. 2nd Street.  The contractor is the same one that completed improvement to Dan 

Carrington’s building at 118 W 2nd St. and work is already underway. 

 

3. Storm Drainage Improvements  – The Oak/Park/Prospect Streets storm drainage 

project is about 20% complete at this time and is making good progress.   
 

4. Excelled Leather –  Leather has not closed.  They have closed their retail outlet, which 

wasn’t marketed much and didn’t do a lot in sales.  The new ownership doesn’t do much 

in the way of retail, and is focusing on the government contracting and distribution 

aspects of the business.  Excelled will continue with those functions, and is on our list of 

invitees for the next business breakfast so that they are rolled into the program and we 

can take whatever steps are necessary to keep them active and even expanding in the 

community.   

 

5. Rhino – I had a meeting with Jim Martin as we continue to work with the company to 

provide options and alternatives that work for them.  He was very complimentary of the 

City and our willingness to meet with and talk to businesses compared to his past 

experiences, and cited those relationships as influential in helping to retain his company 

in the area despite opportunities in other states.             

 

6. USDA Rural Development – Staff met last week with representatives of the US 

Department of Agriculture to discuss Rural Development programs that can be used to 

augment our efforts in housing rehabilitation.  The program can be used in conjunction 

with the City’s incentives or in some cases in lieu of them.  USDA provide a low interest 

loan of up to $20,000 at 1% interest and a grant of up to $7,500 for residents over 62 

years of age.  The grant money can even be used to fund materials if volunteers are 



 

 

available to do the work through a program such as Rebuilding Together.  Staff has 

already referred one resident to the USDA for assistance through their grant program.   

 

7. Rebuilding Together –  The Kewanee Housing Coalition met on Thursday to narrow 

down the list of projects, select a work day, and finalize fundraising efforts.  I provided 

the group with the information about the Rural Development programs, which will help 

to stretch the rehabilitation dollars further.  The next meeting of the group will be July 

18th.  The group’s workday for volunteer improvements to the selected homes will be 

September 16th.  Fundraising efforts are still ongoing.       

 

8. SeeClickFix – The SeeClickFix application that will allow residents to report concerns 

via their mobile phones will go live on Tuesday, and we would like the Mayor to make 

the formal announcement at the meeting Monday night.   

 

9. City Pound – I met with Dan and Brenda Kuffel, who together own the building that 

houses the City Pound.  The owners have some concerns about damage that has been 

caused to the facility, access management, utilities, and certain uses, and are proposing 

some changes to the current lease agreement, all of which seem to be reasonable during 

our discussions.   

  

11. Henry/Bureau County Admin Meeting – City and County Administrators/Managers 

from Henry County, along with the county administrator of Bureau County met earlier 

this week in Kewanee to discuss a variety of topics, including the Enterprise Zone 

application, tourism, and intergovernmental relations, among other things.   
 

12. 911 Dispatch  – The 911 Board will meet next Wednesday at 6 p.m. to discuss and perhaps 

vote on the direction to take regarding the state mandated closure of a PSAP. 

 

13. Fees – Staff continues to work on compiling the needed information to support an 

informed decision with regard to fees for service.  While most of the information is ready, 

we’re also keeping in mind the Council’s desire to deal with the matter only once, as well 

as planned absences from the next meeting.  We expect to present the matter for your 

consideration at the meeting on July 24th.   

 

14. Street Maintenance – We received information from IDOT that our MFT paperwork has 

been approved and the bid letting will be July 13th, with approval of the bids scheduled 

for the Council Meeting on July 24th.   

 

15. Incentive Application – Midwest Trailer Manufacturing submitted an application today 

for the City’s Small Business Interest Payment Program.  Staff had conversations with 

their bank shortly after the program was developed, but it took longer than expected to get 

the application completed.  Staff will review the application, develop benchmarks and 

milestones in accordance with the program guidelines, and have the matter ready for your 

consideration at the July 24th meeting when we expect everyone to be in attendance.     

 

 
 



 1 

COUNCIL MEETING 17-11 
JUNE 12, 2017 

 
The City Council met in Council Chambers at 6:00 PM with the Mayor calling the meeting to order and 
the following answering to roll call: 
   
  Andy Koehler  Council Member 
  Deann Schweitzer  Council Member 
  Mike Yaklich  Council Member 
  Steve Faber  Council Member 
  Steve Looney  Mayor  
 
Council Member Schweitzer made a motion at 6:01 PM to adjourn to executive session pursuant to Section 
2(c)(1) of the Open Meetings Act to discuss personnel.  Council Member Yaklich seconded the motion.  
Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 
 
The executive session was adjourned at 6:27 PM on a motion made by Council Member Yaklich and 
seconded by Council Member Faber.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 
 
The Council Meeting resumed at 7:00 PM with Mayor Looney announcing that Council was reconvening 
following a closed session pursuant to Section 2(c)(1) of the Open Meetings Act to discuss personnel. 
 
News media present was as follows: 
 
  Will Buss    Star Courier 
              
The Pledge of Allegiance was said. 
 
Mayor Looney asked for a moment of silence for our troops still fighting overseas.   
 
Mayor Looney explained that the next items were placed on the consent agenda and were considered to be 
routine in nature to be passed as a whole with one vote of the Council. Mayor Looney requested that any 
member of the Council or the audience wishing to have an item removed from the consent agenda for 
individual consideration to make the request and the item would be removed and considered following the 
approval of the remaining consent items.  The consent agenda included minutes from the May 22, 2017 
Council Meeting and payroll for the pay period ending May 27, 2017 in the amount of $202,141.22, reports 
from Code Enforcement, ESDA, Finance & Administration, and Police Department.  The consent agenda 
was approved on a motion made by Council Member Yaklich and seconded by Council Member Faber.  
Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 
 
Bills submitted for approval totaling $503,840.36 were approved on a motion made by Council Member 
Faber and seconded by Council Member Koehler.  Council Member Yaklich questioned the invoice from 
Ratliff for the Ninth Street sewer repair work.  City Manager Bradley explained the large scope of the 
project.  Council Member Koehler questioned if the payment to CMT was the last of the chloride issue.  
City Manager Bradley stated that we were waiting for a response from the IEPA.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, 
no nays.  The motion passed.   



 2 

 
 
 
 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
 
Mayor Looney asked if anyone wished to speak.  Robert Kuntz reported that he had been in contact with the 
City Manager and Mayor regarding some issues at the depot.  He was happy to note that his concerns were 
taken seriously and action was taken to correct them.  He wanted residents to know they had a voice.  There 
being no other requests Mayor Looney moved on to new business.   
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Gene Norber and Daniel Schmidt from Economic Development Resources gave a presentation regarding 
TIF Incentives, Business District and Enterprise Zones.  The presentation included examples of how the 
three incentives can work together to assist in economic development. 
 
Resolution #5056 designating Speer Financial Inc. as a financial advisor for the City of Kewanee and 
authorizing the City Manager to execute engagement letters in accordance with the City’s Procurement 
Policy was approved on a motion made by Council Member Yaklich and seconded by Council Member 
Koehler.  City Manager Bradley explained that the use of a financial advisor is a recommended best 
practice by the Government Finance Officers Association.  The financial advisor would be used on an 
on call basis when they would be needed.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 
 
Ordinance #3887 establishing the prevailing wage rate of wages for Laborers, Workmen and Mechanics 
employed on Public Works for the City of Kewanee was approved on a motion made by Council 
Member Faber and seconded by Council Member Yaklich.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The 
motion passed.   
 
Resolution #5057 to authorize the temporary closure of Second & Main Streets, US Route 34 and State 
Hwy 78 for the annual Hog Days Parade was approved on a motion made by Council Member  
Schweitzer and seconded by Council Member Faber.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion 
passed. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Council Member Yaklich noted the upcoming Concerts in the Park starting on June 22, and continuing 
for ten weeks.  He urged residents to attend the concerts. 
 
Council Member Faber noted the continuing problem with grass in the streets.  Police Chief Ainley 
noted that they would respond to any complaint made to them regarding the issue. 
 



 3 

Council Member Schweitzer commented that residents could also be neighborly and talk with their 
neighbors regarding the grass in the streets.  She also congratulated retired Chief Dison and welcomed 
Chief Ainley.  She also noted the nice event recently held to recognize Marshall Jones.   
 
Council Member Koehler noted the recurring problems at the train station.  He also noted an open hole 
on Cambridge Road for a water repair.  He suggested that the hole be filled with rock for the weekend. 
 
Mayor Looney thanked everyone involved with the city wide cleanup.  He also noted the barbecue event 
over the weekend, and encouraged everyone to attend.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
There being no further business, Council Member Schweitzer moved to adjourn the meeting and 
Council Member Faber seconded the motion.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The meeting adjourned 
at 7:58 PM. 
 
___________________________________________         ________________________________  
MELINDA EDWARDS, CITY CLERK   DATE APPROVED 

























     
 

 
                                                      
 
 

May 2017 
Public Works Department Report 

 
The Sanitation Division picked up 653,890 lbs of curbside garbage, 80,400 lbs of curbside recycling, 
and 57,640 lbs of curbside landscape waste in the month of May 2017.    
 
The Water Division replaced 3 curbstops and repaired 3 leaking water service lines.  The Water 
Division repaired 1 water main break.  They delivered 97 red tag notices that resulted in 25 water 
services being shut-off at the curbstop.  Of those delinquent accounts 14 have been paid and service 
re-instated.  Water staff has started terminating water services which made the list of properties that 
are up for demolition.  The water Division replaced 5 fire hydrants after the flow testing and has 10 
more scheduled for replacement. The crew has finished the new water main replacement project on 
Golden Ave. and the construction water sample was satisfactory.  Water staff will start tapping the 
water service connections next week.  The water staff replaced 61 mxu/meters and had 81 customer 
water service or account transfers. The water crew preformed 13 leak checks for water account 
customers. The water division had 3 after hour’s customer assist service calls.  
 
The Street Division picked up 89 cubic yards of bulk brush. Street Division repaired storm inlets at 
100 block College St. and the 100 block Burr Blvd. Street Division assisted contractors for both of 
the sewer repairs on 9Th Street and Burlington Ave. The Street/Sewer handled 2 after hour’s 
customer assist service calls. Both the Street and Sanitation Divisions have been re-establishing the 
right of ways after sewer repairs and dead tree removals.  
 
Public works located 176 utility Julie locates for the Julie 1 call system. 
 
Announcements: 
 
Please announce that loads coming to the transfer station that are not tarped can be assessed an 
additional $50.00 fee as per code 50.10(B)(2)  
All taped landscape bags or landscape bags containing stones and trash can NOT be picked up! 
Transfer Station is now closed on Saturdays 
 
  
 
 
Rod Johnson 
Public Works Operation Manager 
 



 

 

BOCK INC. 

MONTHLY REPORT FOR 

MAY, 2017 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

SUBMITTED BY:____________________ 



IEPA SUMMARY 
 

No communications with the IEPA for the month of May. 

MAINTENANCE SUMMARY 
 

BOCK INC. generated 33 preventive work orders for the month. All 33 work orders were 
completed. In addition to the preventive work orders, there was 4 corrective maintenance 
work orders performed. 

SAFETY SUMMARY 
 

Because safety is an important part of our daily practice, we have been without a loss time 
injury at the plant for 28 months. 

 

OPERATIONS SUMMARY 
 

Flow for the month averaged 5.039 MGD with the rainfall totaling 3.16 inches. 

Total KWH used for the month was 160,800. 

All permit limits on the effluent were met for the month. Sludge applied to the field totaled 
0 gallons for the month. 

 



Influent - Daily Total Total
Average Flow Electrical Usage Rainfall
(gallons per day) (kilowatt hours) (inches)

1
January 

2017 3,273,372 147,600 2.21

2
February 

2017 2,093,340 130,800 1.44

3
March   
2017 2,935,713 147,600 3.36

4
April      
2017 5,634,111 165,600 6.78

5
May       
2017 5,039,462 160,800 3.18

6
June     
2016 2,991,209 154,800 6.15

7
July       
2016 3,147,261 148,800 5.59

8
August 
2016 3,277,934 150,000 7.06

9
September 

2016 2,847,171 136,800 1.51

10
October 

2016 1,936,286 136,800 2.53

11
November 

2016 1,757,069 132,000 1.82

12
December 

2016 2,106,381 141,600 1.21

37,039,309 1,753,200 42.84

3,086,609 146,100 3.57

The Plant Design Maximum Flow is
5,000,000 Gallons per Day.

Average

The Plant Design Average Flow is
2,000,000 Gallons per Day.

Date

Total

Kewanee, Illinois
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Submitted by
Twelve Month Moving Average Report

Bock Inc.

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Influent - Daily Average Flow (gallons per day)

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

180,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Total Electrical Usage (kilowatt hours)

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Total  Rainfall (inches)



DMR Copy of Record

Permit

Permit #: IL0029343 Permittee: KEWANEE, CITY OF Facility: KEWANEE STP

Major: Yes Permittee Address: 401 EAST THIRD STREET
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Facility Location: 194 FISHER AVENUE
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Permitted Feature: 001
External Outfall

Discharge:  001-0
STP OUTFALL

   

Report Dates & Status

Monitoring Period: From 05/01/17 to 05/31/17 DMR Due Date: 06/25/17 Status: NetDMR Validated

Considerations for Form Completion

DMF LOAD LIMITS DISPLAYED

Principal Executive Officer

First Name: Stanley Title: Operator-in-Charge Telephone: 309-852-2789

Last Name: Bockewitz

No Data Indicator (NODI)

Form NODI: --

Parameter Monitoring Location Season
#

Param.
NODI

  Quantity or Loading Quality or Concentration # of
Ex.

Frequency of Analysis Sample Type

Code Name Qualifier
1

Value 1 Qualifier
2

Value 2 Units Qualifier
1

Value 1 Qualifier
2

Value 2 Qualifier
3

Value 3 Units

00300Oxygen, dissolved [DO] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample               = 8.02 = 7.9 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly GR - GRAB

Permit
Req.

              >= 6 MN WK
AV

>= 5 DAILY MN 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly GR - GRAB

Value NODI                            

00400pH 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample           = 7.58     = 7.67 12 - SU

0

01/07 - Weekly GR - GRAB

Permit
Req.

          >= 6
MINIMUM

    <= 9 MAXIMUM 12 - SU 01/07 - Weekly GR - GRAB

Value NODI                            

00530Solids, total suspended 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample = 154 = 509 26 - lb/d     = 3.1 = 7.3 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

<= 500 MO AVG <= 1001 DAILY MX 26 - lb/d     <= 12 MO AVG <= 24 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Value NODI                            

00600Nitrogen, total [as N] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                   = 5.1 19 - mg/L

0

01/30 - Monthly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

                    Req Mon DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/30 - Monthly CP -
COMPOS

Value NODI                            

00610Nitrogen, ammonia total [as N] 1 - Effluent Gross 1 --

Sample = 6.7 = 21.1 26 - lb/d     = 0.132 = 0.302 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

<= 54 MO AVG <= 183 DAILY MX 26 - lb/d     <= 1.3 MO AVG <= 4.4 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Value NODI                            

00610Nitrogen, ammonia total [as N]
8 - Other Treatment, Process
Complete 1 --

Sample     = 6.7 26 - lb/d         = 0.132 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

    <= 146 WKLY AVG 26 - lb/d         <= 3.5 WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Value NODI                            

00665Phosphorus, total [as P] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                   = 0.88 19 - mg/L

0

01/30 - Monthly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

                    Req Mon DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/30 - Monthly CP -
COMPOS

Value NODI                            

00940Chloride [as Cl] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                   = 410 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

                    Req Mon DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Value NODI                            

50050
Flow, in conduit or thru treatment
plant 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample = 5.133191 = 9.22369 03 -
MGD

             

0

99/99 - Continuous  

Permit
Req.

  Req Mon MO
AVG

  Req Mon DAILY
MX

03 -
MGD

              99/99 - Continuous  

Value NODI                            

50060Chlorine, total residual 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit
Req.

                  <= .05 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L CL/OC -
Chlorination/Occurances

GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     9 - Conditional Monitoring - Not Required This
Period

     

74055Coliform, fecal general 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                   = 7250 13 -
#/100mL

0

01/30 - Monthly GR - GRAB

Permit
Req.

                    Req Mon DAILY MX 13 -
#/100mL

01/30 - Monthly GR - GRAB



Value NODI                            

80082BOD, carbonaceous [5 day, 20 C] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample = 56.3 = 75.5 26 - lb/d     = 1.47 = 2.01 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

<= 417 MO AVG <= 834 DAILY MX 26 - lb/d     <= 10 MO AVG <= 20 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Value NODI                            

Submission Note

If a parameter row does not contain any values for the Sample nor Effluent Trading, then none of the following fields will be submitted for that row: Units, Number of Excursions, Frequency of Analysis, and Sample Type.

Edit Check Errors

No errors.

Comments

Chlorination did not occur this monitoring period.

Attachments
No attachments.

Report Last Saved By

KEWANEE, CITY OF

User: bockinc1992 Date/Time: 2017-06-14  11:08   (Time Zone: -05:00)

Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  



DMR Copy of Record

Permit

Permit #: IL0029343 Permittee: KEWANEE, CITY OF Facility: KEWANEE STP

Major: Yes Permittee Address: 401 EAST THIRD STREET
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Facility Location: 194 FISHER AVENUE
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Permitted Feature: 003
External Outfall

Discharge:  003-0
EMERGENCY HIGH LEVEL OVERFLOW

   

Report Dates & Status

Monitoring Period: From 05/01/17 to 05/31/17 DMR Due Date: 06/25/17 Status: NetDMR Validated

Considerations for Form Completion

 

Principal Executive Officer

First Name: Stanley Title: Operator-in-Charge Telephone: 309-852-2789

Last Name: Bockewitz

No Data Indicator (NODI)

Form NODI: --

Parameter Monitoring Location Season # Param. NODI   Quantity or Loading Quality or Concentration # of Ex. Frequency of Analysis Sample Type

Code Name Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Units Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Qualifier 3 Value 3 Units

00310 BOD, 5-day, 20 deg. C 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                     Req Mon DAILY MX 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

00530 Solids, total suspended 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                     Req Mon DAILY MX 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

74055 Coliform, fecal general 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                     Req Mon DAILY MX 13 - #/100mL DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

74071 Flow 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.       Req Mon MO TOTAL 4K - #/mo               DL/DS - Daily When Discharging  

Value NODI       C - No Discharge                    

Submission Note

If a parameter row does not contain any values for the Sample nor Effluent Trading, then none of the following fields will be submitted for that row: Units, Number of Excursions, Frequency of Analysis, and Sample Type.

Edit Check Errors

No errors.

Comments

 

Attachments
No attachments.

Report Last Saved By

KEWANEE, CITY OF

User: bockinc1992 Date/Time: 2017-06-14  10:59   (Time Zone: -05:00)

Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  



DMR Copy of Record

Permit

Permit #: IL0029343 Permittee: KEWANEE, CITY OF Facility: KEWANEE STP

Major: Yes Permittee Address: 401 EAST THIRD STREET
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Facility Location: 194 FISHER AVENUE
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Permitted Feature: 004
External Outfall

Discharge:  004-0
EXCESS FLOW LAGOON OUTFALL- EAST LAGOON

   

Report Dates & Status

Monitoring Period: From 05/01/17 to 05/31/17 DMR Due Date: 06/25/17 Status: NetDMR Validated

Considerations for Form Completion

NUMBER OF DAYS OF DISCHARGE:

Principal Executive Officer

First Name: Stanley Title: Operator-in-Charge Telephone: 309-852-2789

Last Name: Bockewitz

No Data Indicator (NODI)

Form NODI: --

Parameter Monitoring Location Season # Param. NODI   Quantity or Loading Quality or Concentration # of Ex. Frequency of Analysis Sample Type

Code Name Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Units Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Qualifier 3 Value 3 Units

00300 Oxygen, dissolved [DO] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                 Req Mon MN WK AV   Req Mon DAILY MN 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00310 BOD, 5-day, 20 deg. C 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.               <= 30 MO AVG <= 45 WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00400 pH 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.           >= 6 MINIMUM     <= 9 MAXIMUM 12 - SU DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI             C - No Discharge       C - No Discharge      

00530 Solids, total suspended 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.               <= 30 MO AVG <= 45 WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00610 Nitrogen, ammonia total [as N] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                 Req Mon MO AVG   Req Mon WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00665 Phosphorus, total [as P] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                 Req Mon MO AVG   Req Mon WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

50060 Chlorine, total residual 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.               <= .75 MO AVG     19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge          

74055 Coliform, fecal general 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                   <= 400 DAILY MX 13 - #/100mL DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

82220 Flow, total 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.       Req Mon MO TOTAL 03 - MGD               DL/DS - Daily When Discharging CN - CONTIN

Value NODI       C - No Discharge                    

Submission Note

If a parameter row does not contain any values for the Sample nor Effluent Trading, then none of the following fields will be submitted for that row: Units, Number of Excursions, Frequency of Analysis, and Sample Type.

Edit Check Errors

No errors.

Comments

 

Attachments
No attachments.

Report Last Saved By

KEWANEE, CITY OF

User: bockinc1992 Date/Time: 2017-06-14  10:59   (Time Zone: -05:00)

Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  



DMR Copy of Record

Permit

Permit #: IL0029343 Permittee: KEWANEE, CITY OF Facility: KEWANEE STP

Major: Yes Permittee Address: 401 EAST THIRD STREET
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Facility Location: 194 FISHER AVENUE
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Permitted Feature: 005
External Outfall

Discharge:  005-0
EXCESS FLOW LAGOON OUTFALL-WEST LAGOON

   

Report Dates & Status

Monitoring Period: From 05/01/17 to 05/31/17 DMR Due Date: 06/25/17 Status: NetDMR Validated

Considerations for Form Completion

NUMBER OF DAYS OF DISCHARGE:

Principal Executive Officer

First Name: Stanley Title: Operator-in-Charge Telephone: 309-852-2789

Last Name: Bockewitz

No Data Indicator (NODI)

Form NODI: --

Parameter Monitoring Location Season # Param. NODI   Quantity or Loading Quality or Concentration # of Ex. Frequency of Analysis Sample Type

Code Name Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Units Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Qualifier 3 Value 3 Units

00300 Oxygen, dissolved [DO] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                 Req Mon MN WK AV   Req Mon DAILY MN 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00310 BOD, 5-day, 20 deg. C 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.               <= 30 MO AVG <= 45 WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00400 pH 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.           >= 6 MINIMUM     <= 9 MAXIMUM 12 - SU DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI             C - No Discharge       C - No Discharge      

00530 Solids, total suspended 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.               <= 30 MO AVG <= 45 WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00610 Nitrogen, ammonia total [as N] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                 Req Mon MO AVG   Req Mon WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00665 Phosphorus, total [as P] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                 Req Mon MO AVG   Req Mon WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

50060 Chlorine, total residual 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.               <= .75 MO AVG     19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge          

74055 Coliform, fecal general 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                   <= 400 DAILY MX 13 - #/100mL DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

82220 Flow, total 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.       Req Mon MO TOTAL 03 - MGD               DL/DS - Daily When Discharging CN - CONTIN

Value NODI       C - No Discharge                    

Submission Note

If a parameter row does not contain any values for the Sample nor Effluent Trading, then none of the following fields will be submitted for that row: Units, Number of Excursions, Frequency of Analysis, and Sample Type.

Edit Check Errors

No errors.

Comments

 

Attachments
No attachments.

Report Last Saved By

KEWANEE, CITY OF

User: bockinc1992 Date/Time: 2017-06-14  10:59   (Time Zone: -05:00)

Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  



DMR Copy of Record

Permit

Permit #: IL0029343 Permittee: KEWANEE, CITY OF Facility: KEWANEE STP

Major: Yes Permittee Address: 401 EAST THIRD STREET
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Facility Location: 194 FISHER AVENUE
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Permitted Feature: INF
Internal Outfall

Discharge:  INF-L
INFLUENT MONITORING

   

Report Dates & Status

Monitoring Period: From 05/01/17 to 05/31/17 DMR Due Date: 06/25/17 Status: NetDMR Validated

Considerations for Form Completion

 

Principal Executive Officer

First Name: Stanley Title: Operator-in-Charge Telephone: 309-852-2789

Last Name: Bockewitz

No Data Indicator (NODI)

Form NODI: --

Parameter Monitoring Location Season # Param. NODI   Quantity or Loading Quality or Concentration # of Ex. Frequency of Analysis Sample Type

Code Name Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Units Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Qualifier 3 Value 3 Units

00310 BOD, 5-day, 20 deg. C G - Raw Sewage Influent 0 --

Sample               = 18.9     19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Permit Req.                 Req Mon MO AVG     19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Value NODI                            

00530 Solids, total suspended G - Raw Sewage Influent 0 --

Sample               = 183     19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Permit Req.                 Req Mon MO AVG     19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Value NODI                            

50050 Flow, in conduit or thru treatment plant G - Raw Sewage Influent 0 --

Sample = 5.039462 = 9.098271 03 - MGD              

0

99/99 - Continuous  

Permit Req.   Req Mon MO AVG   Req Mon DAILY MX 03 - MGD               99/99 - Continuous  

Value NODI                            

Submission Note

If a parameter row does not contain any values for the Sample nor Effluent Trading, then none of the following fields will be submitted for that row: Units, Number of Excursions, Frequency of Analysis, and Sample Type.

Edit Check Errors

No errors.

Comments

 

Attachments
No attachments.

Report Last Saved By

KEWANEE, CITY OF

User: bockinc1992 Date/Time: 2017-06-14  11:10   (Time Zone: -05:00)

Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  







































  Item B  

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE June 26, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Ordinance #3888 

AGENDA TITLE Ordinance granting a request for variance to Anthony 
Holdgrafer, 703 S. Washington St., Kewanee, IL. 
61443. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE A variance of 6 feet (50%), to the North side yard setback 
for the proposed carport to allow a 6 foot setback versus 
the 12 feet setback required by §155.061-(E)-(2)-(A), 
building setback in the Side Street, required in an R-2 One 
Family Dwelling District of the City Code. 

 

BACKGROUND Anthony Holdgrafer contacted me and applied for a 
Building Permit to construct an 18 feet by 20 feet 
garage/carport to the West & North of the existing house.  
The existing house exists on a corner lot having frontage 
on S. Washington St. with the side yard to North laying 
adjacent to Pine St.   



  Item B  

SPECIAL NOTES When Holdgrafer purchased this property there was a 
single car garage in the location that Holdgrafer wishes to 
place the new garage/carport.  This single car garage was 
in very poor condition, which prompted Holdgrafer to 
remove the building from the property.  The garage was 
lawful nonconforming with concern to its placement in 
relation to the setback. 
Holdgrafer has stated that his wife is disabled and by 
placing the new garage/carport in the same location of 
the old garage, his wife will have easier access to the 
house. 
According to the Henry County Assessor’s Office the 
existing house was built in 1907.   
I would encourage all City Council members to perform 
their own onsite inspection of the property.   

ANALYSIS With consideration to the surrounding neighborhood, 
vision clearance at the intersection of Pine St. & S 
Washington St. and after speaking with the City Manager 
about this petition, the City can see no adverse effect on 
anyone if the variance is granted and has no issues with 
the request.  
 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

Legal notice was published in the Star Courier, Post 
cards were mailed to all persons owning land within 
300 feet of 703 S Washington St. 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

After discussing the facts and testimony presented, the 
Zoning Board of Appeals recommends, based on the 
authority of §33.062 of the City Code, by a vote of six in 
favor of the application, none opposed to the application, 
one absent, that the City Council grant the variance 
petition as filed. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval. 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

ZBOA Minutes. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 3888 
 
ORDINANCE GRANTING A REQUEST FOR VARIANCE TO ANTHONY HOLDGRAFER, 703 SOUTH 
WASHINGTON STREET, KEWANEE, ILLINOIS.  BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS, IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS. 
 
SECTION ONE:    The City Council finds that a petition has heretofore been filed by Anthony Holdgrafer 

directed to the Zoning Board of Appeals and City Council requesting that a variance be 
granted as to the North side yard setback for the proposed carport to allow a 6 foot 
setback versus the 12 feet setback required, required in an R-2 One Family Dwelling 
District of the City Code for the following described property: 

Lot 1,2 & 3, EX S38 Lt 3, Blk 4 Walnut Hill Addition to the City of Kewanee, 
County of Henry, State of Illinois  

 
SECTION TWO:    The Zoning Board of Appeals conducted a hearing upon said Petition on Wednesday,        

June 21, 2017, in Council Chambers at 401 E. Third Street, pursuant to notice 
published in the Kewanee Star Courier, at which time and place the Zoning Board of 
Appeals heard statements of the Petitioners.  There were no Objectors. 

 
SECTION THREE:  The Zoning Board of Appeals has recommended to the Council, by a vote of six in 

favor, none opposed, one absent, that a variance to the North side yard setback for the 
proposed garage/carport to allow a 6 foot setback versus the 12 feet setback required by 
§155.061-(E)-(2)-(a), building setback in the Side Street Yard, required in an R-2 One 
Family Dwelling District be granted. 

 
SECTION FOUR:     The recommendations of the Zoning Board of Appeals regarding the variance is 

accepted and hereby approved. 
 
SECTION FIVE:          The following variance shall be, and hereby is granted: 

A variance of 6 feet (50%), to the North side yard setback for the proposed 
carport to allow a 6 foot setback versus the 12 feet setback required by §155.061-
(E)-(2)-(A), building setback in the Side Street, required in an R-2 One Family 
Dwelling District of the City Code. 

 
SECTION SIX:           This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 
                                      approval as provided by law. 
 

Passed by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 26th day of June, 2017. 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Melinda Edwards, City Clerk  Steve Looney, Mayor 

 
 

 
 

 
 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Steve Looney     

Council Member  Andrew Koehler     
Council Member Deann Schweitzer      

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Michael Yaklich     





















  Item D 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE June 26, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Ordinance #3889 

AGENDA TITLE Rezoning of 212 N Burr Blvd 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

N/A 

PURPOSE To Rezone the property at 212 N Burr Blvd from B-1 
Business District, Limited Retail to B-3 Business 
Service & Wholesale District. 

BACKGROUND Robert Robinson is in process of potentially 
purchasing the above listed B-1 zoned property that 
is owned by Lyndell Lempke.  Robinson wishes to 
construct a post-frame (aka heavy timber 
construction) storage building upon the property for 
storage of materials and equipment for his rental 
properties.  Directly to the East of the subject 
property is a parcel having the address of 213 N Elm 
St.  213 N Elm St is zoned B-3 and has the same 
kind of building upon it that Robinson proposes to 
place on 212 N Burr Blvd. 
Storage buildings/warehouses are not allowed in B-1 
but are allowed in B-3 per the City of Kewanee Code 
of Ordinances.   
 



  Item D 

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS After speaking with the City Manager about this 
case, the city has no argument with this rezoning 
request or with the use that Robinson is proposing 
should he purchase the property.  Because the 
property in question is located adjacent to an existing 
B-3 district, the City does not feel that “Spot Zoning” 
is an issue. 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

Legal notice was published in the Star Courier, Post 
cards were mailed to all persons owning land within 
300 feet of 212 N Burr Blvd. 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

After discussing the facts and testimony presented, 
the Plan Commission recommends, by a vote of five 
in favor of the application, none opposed to the 
application, four absent, that the application to 
Rezone the property located at 212 N Burr Blvd be 
approved by the City Council.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval. 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

N/A 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 3889 
 

ORDINANCE GRANTING A REZONING REQUEST, FOR LAND LOCATED AT 212 N BURR 
BLVD., KEWANEE 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS, IN 
COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1 The City Council finds that a Petition has heretofore been filed by Robert Robinson on 

behalf of the owner Lyndell Lempke with the City Clerk, directed to the Plan 
Commission and the City Council requesting that the zoning district of 212 N Burr Blvd 
be changed from B-1 Business District, Limited Retail to B-3 Business Service & 
Wholesale District for the following described property: 
Lot 8, Block 14 of the Original Towns, now City of Kewanee, Henry County, 
Illinois. 
This land is commonly known as 212 N Burr Blvd. 

Section 2 The Plan Commission conducted a hearing upon said Petition on Thursday, June 22, 
2017, pursuant to notice being published in the Kewanee Star Courier according to law, 
at which time and place the Commission heard the statements of those speaking in 
support of the petition.  There were no objectors. 

Section 3 After further discussion at the hearing, the Plan Commission conducted a vote to approve 
the requested change in zoning of the land described in Section 1 hereof, with the results 
being five in favor of the change in zoning, none opposed to the change in zoning, and 
four absent.     

Section 4 The zoning district of the land described in Section 1 hereof shall be, and hereby is, 
established as B-3 Business Service & Wholesale District. 

Section 5 This ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval 
as provided by law. 

 

Passed by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 26th day of June 2017. 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Melinda Edwards, City Clerk  Steve Looney, Mayor 

  
 
 
 
  

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Steve Looney     

Council Member  Deann Schweitzer     
Council Member Andrew Koehler     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Michael Yaklich     



  Item E 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE June 26, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Ordinance #3890 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of an ordinance to grant a Special Use 
Permit to sell alcohol by the individual serving in the 
proposed bar and grill to Bill Cox, owner of Big River 
Gaming LLC, doing business as Lacey’s Place 
located at 202 N Tremont St. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE To grant a Special Use Permit to serve alcohol by the 
drink to Bill Cox, owner of Big River Gaming LLC, doing 
business as Lacey’s Place located at 202 N Tremont St. 

BACKGROUND The proposed location is vacant and was previously 
Opie’s Bar & Grill.  Bill Cox, owner of Big River Gaming 
LLC, doing business as Lacey’s Place, has supplied a 
thorough summary and business plan.  According to this 
plan, Lacey’s Place will be a bar and grill with a full bar 
and video gaming machines.  They plan to market towards 
the 30 and over customer base and are looking to hire 8 to 
10 employees. 
 

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 



  Item E 

ANALYSIS I don’t see any items of concern with this Special Use 
Permit request.  Directly below is a set of typical 
stipulations that might be placed on a Special Use Permit 
to sell alcohol by the serving. 
 

1. The Special Use Permit is granted to Bill Cox, 
owner, Big River Gaming LLC, only, and is not 
transferable to any successor property owners 
and/or operators of a restaurant or bar serving 
alcohol on the site. 

2. Said Special Use Permit shall not become 
effective until such time as a liquor license is 
lawfully obtained from the City of Kewanee and 
the State of Illinois. 

3. The sale of alcoholic beverages shall be 
permitted only during the hours as allowed by 
the license classification issued by the liquor 
commissioner as permitted by Section §111.18 
of the City Code of the City of Kewanee. 

4. The configuration and uses of various parts of 
the building shall remain in substantial 
compliance with the floor plan submitted along 
with the petition for the special use permit. 

5. No package sale of liquor or carryout sale of 
liquor is allowed. 

6. All activities associated with this Special Use 
Permit to sell alcoholic liquor by the individual 
serving in the restaurant shall be conducted in 
full compliance with the Kewanee City Code 
and the laws and regulations of the State of 
Illinois. 

7. Any violations of the terms and conditions of 
the Special Use Permit are subject to review 
and possible revocation by the Plan 
Commission and City Council. 

 
Special Use Permit Criteria (155.157 C) 

(1) That the proposed use at the particular location 
requested is necessary or desirable to provide a 
service or a facility which is in the interest of public 
convenience, and will contribute to the general 
welfare of the neighborhood or community; 

(2) That such use will not, under the circumstances of 
the particular case, be detrimental to the health, 
safety, morals or general welfare of persons 
residing or working in the vicinity or injurious to 
property values or improvements in the vicinity, 
and 

(3) That the proposed use will comply with the 
regulations and conditions specified in this chapter 



  Item E 
for such use, and with the stipulations and 
conditions made a part of the authorization granted 
by the Council. 

 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

Legal notice was published in the Star Courier, Post 
cards were mailed to all persons owning land within 
300 feet of 150 E South St. 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

After discussing the facts and testimony presented, 
the Plan Commission recommends, by a vote of five 
in favor of the application, none opposed to the 
application, four absent, that the application to grant 
a Special Use Permit to serve alcohol by the drink be 
approved by the City Council.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends passing the ordinance 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 3890 
 

ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO BILL COX, OWNER OF 
BIG RIVER GAMING LLC, DBA LACEY’S PLACE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED 
AT 202 N TREMONT STREET IN THE CITY OF KEWANEE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE, 
ILLINOIS IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION ONE:   The City Council finds that an application has heretofore been filed 

by Bill Cox, Big River Gaming LLC and Lacey’s Palce of Kewanee, Illinois with 
the City Clerk, directed to the Plan Commission and the City Council requesting 
that a Special Use Permit to allow sale and serving of alcoholic liquor by the 
individual serving for the proposed bar and grill be granted, on the following 
described real estate, to-wit: 

Lots 17 & 18 County Clerks Sub Pt Blk 16 Original Town City of Kewanee, Henry 
County, Illinois. 

Commonly known as 202 N Tremont Street. 
 

SECTION TWO:   The Plan Commission conducted a hearing upon said Petition on 
Thursday, June 22, 2017, pursuant to notice published in the Kewanee Star 
Courier according to law, at which time and place the Commission heard the 
statements of the Petitioner.   

 
SECTION THREE: The Plan Commission has recommended by a vote of five in favor, 

none opposed, and four absent, that a Special Use Permit to allow sale and serving 
of alcoholic liquor by the individual serving for the proposed bar and grill be 
granted to Bill Cox, Big River Gaming LLC, d/b/a Lacey’s Place at 202 N 
Tremont Street. 

 
SECTION FOUR:    The recommendation of the Plan Commission shall be, and the 

same is, hereby accepted and approved. 
 
SECTION FIVE:    A Special Use Permit shall be and hereby is granted to Bill Cox, Big 

River Gaming LLC, d/b/a Lacey’s Place to allow sale and serving of alcoholic 
liquor by the individual serving for the proposed bar and grill on the premises 
described in Section One hereof, in conformance with the stipulations enumerated 
in Section Six hereof. 

 

SECTION SIX:    The following Seven (7) stipulations and restrictions are hereby 
placed upon the proposed use on the premises described in Section One hereof: 
1. The Special Use Permit is granted to Bill Cox, owner, Big River Gaming LLC, 

only, and is not transferable to any successor property owners and/or 
operators of a restaurant, bistro or bar serving alcohol on the site. 

2. Said Special Use Permit shall not become effective until such time as a liquor 
license is lawfully obtained from the City of Kewanee and the State of Illinois. 



Page 2 of 2 
Ordinance No. 3890, June 26, 2017 
Special Use Permit 202 N Tremont St. 

3. The sale of alcoholic beverages shall be permitted only during the hours as 
allowed by the license classification issued by the liquor commissioner as 
permitted by Section §111.18 of the City Code of the City of Kewanee. 

4. The configuration and uses of various parts of the building shall remain in 
substantial compliance with the floor plan submitted along with the petition for 
the special use permit. Which would include one additional bathroom. 

5. No package sale of liquor or carryout sale of liquor is allowed. 
6. All activities associated with this Special Use Permit to sell alcoholic liquor by 

the individual serving in the restaurant shall be conducted in full compliance 
with the Kewanee City Code and the laws and regulations of the State of 
Illinois. 

7. Any violations of the terms and conditions of the Special Use Permit are 
subject to review and possible revocation by the Plan Commission and City 
Council. 

 
SECTION SEVEN:    This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon 

its passage and approval as provided by law. 
 
 
Passed by the City Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois, this 26th day of June, 2017. 
 
 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Melinda K. Edwards, City Clerk  Steve Looney, Mayor 

 
RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Steve Looney     
Council Member Andrew Koehler     

Council Member Deann Schweitzer     
Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     
 



                                  Item F 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE June 26, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5058 

AGENDA TITLE A resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute 
a right-of-way agreement with Geneseo 
Communications and declaring that this resolution 
shall be in full force immediately. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Gary Bradley, City Manager 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A  

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Provides an agreement for the placement of 
communications infrastructure in the city right of way. 

BACKGROUND City staff was approached by representatives from 
Geneseo Communications regarding the placement 
of fiber-optic cable in the City right of way to provide 
high speed internet to residential and business 
customers.   

SPECIAL NOTES Geneseo Communications has not yet approved the 
agreement.  If they have not agreed to the language, 
staff will ask that the item be tabled until such time as 
they have agreed to the language.  Their initial 
proposed language provided only for a one-time 
payment of $10,000. 



                                  Item F 

ANALYSIS Staff expects high speed fiber-optic service to be 
popular, leading a large number of residents to switch 
from current providers with franchise agreements to 
Geneseo Communications’ service, resulting in a lot 
of installation and maintenance activities in the right-
of-way.  The agreement requires Geneseo 
Communications to work with our staff in order to 
avoid damaging our infrastructure and disrupting our 
service to our customers, and also requires the 
company to provide accurate mapping to help 
eliminate our disruptions to their services in the 
future.   

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A     

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval. 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Resolution # 5058 

  



RESOLUTION NO. 5058 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A RIGHT-OF-

WAY AGREEMENT WITH GENESEO COMMUNICATIONS AND DECLARING THAT 

THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Kewanee has the right and power to regulate and permit the 

installation, operation and maintenance of communications infrastructure in the 

Public Right-of-Way within the City limits; and,  

WHEREAS, Geneseo Communications has requested pursuant to applicable federal and state 

law and regulations that the City of Kewanee enter into an agreement for the 

placement of communications infrastructure in the City-owned right-of-way in 

Kewanee; and, 

WHEREAS, The City Council finds it to be in the best interest of the residents, businesses, 

and visitors to enter into the proposed agreement to help provide the services, 

facilities, and equipment necessary to meet the future communications related 

needs for the community. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

KEWANEE IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1 The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute all necessary documents to put 

into effect the Communications Facilities franchise agreement with Geneseo 

Communications as contained in Attachment A hereto. 

 

Section 2 This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 

approval as provided by law. 

 

 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 26th day of June, 2017. 

 

    

ATTEST:   Steve Looney, Mayor 

    

    

  Melinda K. Edwards, City Clerk  

    

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Steve Looney     

Council Member Andrew Koehler     

Council Member Deann Schweitzer     

Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Mike Yaklich     

 



  Item G 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE June 26, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Ordinance #3891 

AGENDA TITLE Rezoning of 618 Tenney St, 626 Tenney St and 150 
E South St 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE To Rezone the properties at 618 Tenney St, 626 
Tenney St and 150 E South St from M-1 Manufacturing 
District – Limited AND B-2 Business District – General 
Retail to B-3 Business Service & Wholesale District. 

 



  Item G 

BACKGROUND In reference to Parcel Number 1.  Approximately 90% of 
the parcel is zoned M-1.  A 32’ strip of land running East 
to West at the South side of the property is zoned 
differently.  The West half of this strip of land is zoned B-2 
and the East half of the strip is zoned B-3. 
 
In reference to Parcel Number 2.  There is a land locked 
section at the Northeast corner of the property that is 
zoned B-3.  This section measures approximately 125’ 
(East to West) by 106’ (North to South).   
The Southern tip of the property (approximately the South 
80’) is zoned M-1.   
The remainder of the property is zoned B-2 which is “L” 
shaped along the West edge and through the middle of 
the property to the East. 
 
In reference to Parcel Number 3.  The entire parcel is 
zoned M-1. 
 
The Future Land Use map in the City of Kewanee’s 
Comprehensive Plan has all of the parcels in this case 
marked as Commercial.  The definition of Commercial as 
listed in the Comprehensive Plan is: 
 

Commercial – Commercial land use is 
categorized by wholesale and retail sales and 
services.  Commercial areas are located, for the 
most part, in three distinct areas:  in the original 
downtown, in a corridor along both sides of U.S. 
34/IL78 (Main Street and Tenney Street), and in a 
large commercial area developing south of South 
Street.  Commercial land use in Kewanee 
comprises about 7% of the total land use. 

 
It is not very clear in my research of the street files why 
parcels 1 & 2 are divided into three different zoning 
districts, although I have found some details as explained 
in the Plan Commission minutes. 
 
In most cases, Manufacturing Zoning Districts exist along 
the corridor of the railroad tracks running through the city 
or at the edges of the city limits.  This makes sense that 
these parcels would have originally been zoned as 
Manufacturing considering that the location of these 
parcels at one time were the South edge of town.  The 
area now occupied by Walmart, Farm King, etc. was 
agricultural (cornfields etc.).  As this area has been 
developed with commercial/retail uses, the perceived 
edge of town has been moved to the South which results 
in the Manufacturing Zoned parcels in these three cases 



  Item G 
now being used and surrounded by commercial/retail uses 
(Business Zoning B-2 and B-3). 
I’ve discussed this matter with retired City Manager Kip 
Spear to try to gain some knowledge on the case.  Kip told 
me that this “clean-up” of the zoning map has been 
needed for quite some time and it was just something he 
never got around to. 
 

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS In discussing the matter with our current City Manager 
Gary Bradley, he and I both agree that this city initiated re-
zoning of these three parcels to B-3 makes sense and is 
in character with the surrounding area.  The City feels that 
the best use of the parcels in this case is commercial/retail 
(B-3 Zoning) as they are currently used for, with exception 
to Case Number 2 which at this time is a vacant lot. 

 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

Legal notice was published in the Star Courier, Post 
cards were mailed to all persons owning land within 
300 feet of 315 W Second St. 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

After discussing the facts and testimony presented, the 
Plan Commission recommends, by a vote of five in favor 
of the application, none opposed to the application, four 
absent, that the application to Rezone the properties 
located at 618 Tenney St., 626 Tenney St. and 150 E. 
South St. be approved by the City Council.   

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends passing the ordinance 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Aerial photo with notes 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A RIGHT-OF-

WAY AGREEMENT WITH GENESEO COMMUNICATIONS AND DECLARING THAT 

THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Kewanee has the right and power to regulate and permit the 

installation, operation and maintenance of communications infrastructure in the 

Public Right-of-Way within the City limits; and,  

WHEREAS, Geneseo Communications has requested pursuant to applicable federal and state 

law and regulations that the City of Kewanee enter into an agreement for the 

placement of communications infrastructure in the City-owned right-of-way in 

Kewanee; and, 

WHEREAS, The City Council finds it to be in the best interest of the residents, businesses, 

and visitors to enter into the proposed agreement to help provide the services, 

facilities, and equipment necessary to meet the future communications related 

needs for the community. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

KEWANEE IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1 The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute all necessary documents to put 

into effect the Communications Facilities franchise agreement with Geneseo 

Communications as contained in Attachment A hereto. 

 

Section 2 This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 

approval as provided by law. 

 

 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 26th day of June, 2017. 

 

    

ATTEST:   Steve Looney, Mayor 

    

    

  Melinda K. Edwards, City Clerk  

    

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Steve Looney     

Council Member Andrew Koehler     

Council Member Deann Schweitzer     

Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Mike Yaklich     

 





RESOLUTION NO. 5059 
 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING COMPENSATION FOR CERTAIN NON-
UNION, EXEMPT, AND MANAGEMENT STAFF, AND DECLARING THAT THIS 
RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE UPON ADOPTION. 

WHEREAS, The City Manager recommends implementation of salary 
increases for certain non-union, exempt, and management staff of 
the City; and 

WHEREAS, The City Council after consideration of the recommendation agree 
that salary increases are in order to provide incentive for 
continued commitment to the organization from said staff. 

 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

KEWANEE THAT: 
 
Section 1 The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to adjust all 

non-union, exempt, and managerial staff compensation with the 
implementation of raises as reflected in attachment A; and 

 
Section 2 This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

passage and approval as provided by law, with said increases 
being retroactive to the May 1, 2017, the beginning of FY17/18. 

 
Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 26th day of June, 2017. 

ATTEST:   
   
   
Melinda Edwards, City Clerk  Steve Looney, Mayor 

 

  
  

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Steve Looney     

Council Member Andrew Koehler     
Council Member Mike Yaklich     
Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Deann Schweitzer     



Attachment A 
 
 

             

 


	Agenda20170626
	Monday, June 26, 2017

	CM memo
	COUNCIL MEETING 17-11
	The City Council met in Council Chambers at 6:00 PM with the Mayor calling the meeting to order and the following answering to roll call:
	NEW BUSINESS

	ANNOUNCEMENTS

	HBZ Permit Report
	Fin & Admin May 2017
	May 2017 PWD Report
	Cover Page May, 2017
	BOCK INC.
	MONTHLY REPORT FOR
	MAY, 2017
	SUBMITTED BY:____________________

	May, 2017 monthly summary
	Moving Average Report May, 2017
	MOVING1

	001 DMR May, 2017
	003 DMR May, 2017
	004 DMR May, 2017
	005 DMR May, 2017
	Influent DMR May, 2017
	Cemetery Board of Managers Report
	Tag Day Request Humane Society
	WarrantList20170626
	ZBA Minutes
	ZBA Attendance Sheet
	Staff Report Variance 703 S Washington St
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	OrdVariance 703 S Washington St 20170626
	Plan Commission Minutes
	Plan Commission Attendance
	Staff Report -212 N Burr Blvd
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	OrdRezone 212 N Burr Blvd
	Staff Report -Lacey's
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	OrdSU Lacey's 201700626
	Staff Report - Geneseo Communications
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	ResGeneseoComm
	Staff Report -Tenney St Rezoning
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	OrdRezone Tenney St
	Image Tenney St Rezoning
	ResNon-union compensationFY1718_20170624

